Minnesota Real Estate Foreclosures
21 Common Questions & Answers
Click on the links to be taken to the answers. To contact Winthrop & Weinstine's Creditors' Remedies
attorneys, click here. To download this as a PDF, click here.
1. What happens at a real estate foreclosure sale?
2. Who can bid at a foreclosure sale?
3. Does the foreclosing creditor need to bring cash to the foreclosure sale?
4. What does the highest bidder at a sheriff’s sale acquire?
5. What are the redemption rights of the owner of the foreclosed property?
6. What happens if the owner of the foreclosed property redeems?
7. What happens if the owner of the foreclosed property does not redeem and there are no junior
liens against the property?
8. What kind of redemption rights does a junior lienholder have?
9. How do the redemption rules work if there are multiple junior lienholders?
10. What happens to prior mortgages and liens if a junior mortgage is foreclosed?
11. How long is the owner’s redemption period?
12. Do junior lienholders receive notice of a foreclosure sale by a senior lienholder?
13. What is a deficiency claim?
14. Does Minnesota have an anti-deficiency statute?
15. Does Minnesota’s anti-deficiency statute protect guarantors?
16. What are reinstatement rights?
17. What is a foreclosure by advertisement and how long does it take?
18. What is a foreclosure by action and how long does it take?

Capella Tower | Suite 3500 | 225 South Sixth Street | Minneapolis, MN 55402
Main: (612) 604-6400 | Fax: (612) 604-6800 | www.winthrop.com | A Professional Association

19. Why would a lender foreclose by action if foreclosure by advertisement is generally faster?
20. When can a lender negotiate a voluntary foreclosure agreement with a shortened two-month
redemption period?
21. When can a lender take advantage of the reduced five week redemption period for abandoned
residential properties?

Questions and Answers
1. What happens at a real estate foreclosure sale?
The sheriff of the county where the real estate is located reads the published Notice of Foreclosure
Sale; solicits bids; and then issues to the highest bidder a Sheriff’s Certificate of Sale (if foreclosure
by advertisement) or a Sheriff’s Report of Sale (if foreclosure by action).
2. Who can bid at a foreclosure sale?
Anyone. However, because of Minnesota’s redemption rules, it is rare for anyone other than the
foreclosing creditor to bid at a foreclosure sale. In almost all cases, the highest bidder is the
foreclosing creditor.
3. Does the foreclosing creditor need to bring cash to the foreclosure sale?
No. The foreclosing creditor may “credit bid” all or some of the debt secured by the mortgage. The
mortgage debt is satisfied or partially satisfied by the amount of the foreclosing creditor’s bid.
Accordingly, the foreclosing creditor should carefully consider the value of its collateral and other
potential sources of recovery (including guarantors and other collateral) before attending the sale.
Any other party who bids at the sheriff’s sale must bid with cash or certified funds.
4. What does the highest bidder at a sheriff’s sale acquire?
The highest bidder at the sale acquires ownership of the mortgage property, subject to: (i) any prior
liens (including any unpaid real estate taxes and assessments, which are always first priority liens);
(ii) the owner’s redemption rights; and (iii) the redemption rights of junior lienholders who timely file a
notice of intention to redeem.
5. What are the redemption rights of the owner of the foreclosed property?
The owner of the foreclosed property generally has two major rights during the redemption period.
First, unless a receiver is appointed over the property, the owner retains all incidents of ownership
during the redemption period, including the rights of occupancy and use, and the right to collect any
rents and profits generated by the property.
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Second, any time during the redemption period (see answer to Question 11 ), the owner may
“redeem” (or re acquire) full title to the foreclosed property by paying the holder of the Sheriff’s
Certificate (usually, the foreclosing creditor) an amount equal to the amount bid at the sale, plus
interest accruing after the date of sale, plus certain costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, subject to a cap in foreclosures by advertisement) accruing after the date of the sale
(the “Redemption Price”).
6. What happens if the owner of the foreclosed property redeems?
If the owner redeems, the rights existing under the Sheriff’s Certificate of Sale are extinguished and
any junior liens against the foreclosed property are “revived” as though there had been no foreclosure
sale. The owner is given a Certificate of Redemption at the time of redemption, which is filed with the
real estate records and serves as record notice of the redemption.
7. What happens if the owner of the foreclosed property does not redeem and there are no
junior liens against the property?
If the owner does not redeem during the owner’s redemption period, then the foreclosing creditor (or
the holder of the Sheriff’s Certificate) becomes the fee owner of the foreclosed property: (i) free and
clear of the foreclosed mortgage; (ii) free and clear of any interest of the mortgagor; and (iii) subject
to any prior mortgages or liens. Except for certain agricultural properties, the holder of the Sheriff’s
Certificate is then free to hold or dispose of the property in any manner. Generally, the foreclosing
party will market and sell the property. When dealing with Torrens property, the holder of the Sheriff’s
Certificate should go through a “proceeding subsequent,” a legal proceeding which causes the
Registrar of Titles to cancel the existing owner’s Certificate of Title and issue a new owner’s
Certificate of Title in the name of the new owner.
8. What kind of redemption rights does a junior lienholder have?
Any junior lienholder who wants to redeem must record and file a Notice of Intention to Redeem at
least one week before the owner’s redemption period expires. If the owner does not redeem, then the
highest priority junior lienholder who has timely filed a Notice of Intention to Redeem has seven days
to redeem (or buy) the foreclosed property by paying the Redemption Price to the holder of the
Sheriff’s Certificate. A redeeming party may redeem through the Sheriff’s Department or directly
through the holder of the Sheriff’s Certificate. The redeeming party receives a Certificate of
Redemption. Once the junior lienholder redeems, it becomes the fee owner of the foreclosed
property: (i) free and clear of the mortgagor’s rights in the property; and (ii) free and clear of the
foreclosing creditor’s rights; but (iii) subject to the redemption rights of any junior lienholders; and (iv)
subject to any liens which were superior to the foreclosed mortgage.
9. How do the redemption rules work if there are multiple junior lienholders?
Each junior lienholder’s redemption rights are determined by the priority of their liens. If it has timely
filed a Notice of Intention to Redeem and the owner does not redeem, the first junior lienholder has
the first seven day option to redeem the property from the holder of the Sheriff’s Certificate by paying
the Redemption Price.
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Any subsequent junior lienholder who has timely filed a Notice of Intent to Redeem then has (in the
order of their priority) successive seven day periods to redeem from the lienholder by paying the prior
redeeming creditor an amount (roughly) equal to the Redemption Price, plus the amount due on any
prior redeeming mortgage.
10. What happens to prior mortgages and liens if a junior mortgage is foreclosed?
Senior mortgages and liens “ride through” a foreclosure sale conducted by a junior lienholder. As a
result, any party buying real estate at a foreclosure sale will acquire the property subject to the prior
liens. After acquiring the property through foreclosure, the new owner may, but is not required to, pay
off the prior liens. If the prior liens are not paid, then the prior lienholders would likely proceed with
their own foreclosure sale.
11. How long is the owner’s redemption period?
In most cases, the owner’s redemption period is six months. The owner has a longer, 12-month
redemption period in certain circumstances, including where: (i) the original principal amount of the
mortgage debt has been paid down by a third or more; (ii) the mortgaged property is more than 10
acres but less than 40 acres and was “in agricultural use” when the mortgage was signed (and the
mortgagor did not waive the 12-month redemption period); or (iii) the land is more than 40 acres in
size.
In certain limited circumstances, the redemption period can be reduced to two months or five weeks.
After a mortgage has been in default for at least 30 days, the mortgagor and the lender can agree to
a reduced two month redemption period under a voluntary foreclosure agreement (“VFA”), which is
discussed in more detail in the answer to Question 20. In certain cases involving abandoned
residential properties, the redemption period can be reduced to five weeks. (Five-week redemption
periods are discussed further in the answer to Question 21.)
12. Do junior lienholders receive notice of a foreclosure sale by a senior lienholder?
If the senior lienholder forecloses by action (by starting a lawsuit), it should name any junior
lienholders as defendants in the lawsuit. A Junior lienholder in a foreclosure by action should receive
notice that a foreclosure proceeding has started when it is served with the summons and complaint.
The junior lienholder should then monitor the progress of the foreclosure proceedings and remain
apprised of significant events and deadlines, including any lien-priority issues, the date of the
foreclosure sale, the redemption deadlines, and the deadlines for filing a Notice of Intention to
Redeem.
If the senior lienholder forecloses by advertisement, it is not generally required to provide junior
lienholders with notice of the foreclosure sale. As a result, a foreclosure sale could occur without the
knowledge of the junior lienholder and the junior lienholder could lose its mortgage and redemption
rights. To prevent this, junior lienholders should always file a Request for Notice of a Mortgage
Foreclosure by Advertisement in the appropriate county real estate offices (Torrens or Abstract) when
taking a junior lien against the property.
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If the Request for Notice is filed before the senior foreclosing lienholder files a Notice of Pendency,
the senior lienholder must provide the junior lienholder with notice of the foreclosure by
advertisement. Senior lienholders customarily provide junior lienholders with notice of a foreclosure
by advertisement, even though they are not required to do so. However, a junior lienholder should
always file a Request for Notice to make sure its rights are protected.
13. What is a deficiency claim?
Deficiency claims come into play when the collateral is worth less than the debt secured by the
mortgage. When the lender “credit bids” at the foreclosure sale, it reduces the mortgage debt by the
amount bid. If the lender bids the full amount of the debt, there is no deficiency. If the lender bids less
than the mortgage debt, then the “deficiency” is the difference between the amount bid and the
mortgage debt. It is important to remember that the deficiency is not determined by what the lender
ultimately receives on disposition of the property. By way of example, a lender who: (i) is owed $1
million; (ii) bids $1 million at the foreclosure sale; and (iii) after the expiration of the redemption period
sells the property for $500,000—does not have a $500,000 deficiency claim—even though the lender
has experienced a $500,000 loss. Instead, the lender in this example has no deficiency claim
because it bid the full amount of the mortgage debt at the foreclosure sale.
14. Does Minnesota have an anti-deficiency statute?
Yes. Under Minnesota’s “anti-deficiency statute,” the lender may not pursue a deficiency against the
mortgagor if: (i) the lender forecloses by advertisement (instead of by action); and (ii) the owner’s
redemption period is six months or less. So in most cases, the lender cannot recover a deficiency
against the mortgagor if the lender forecloses by advertisement. Accordingly, if the mortgaged
property is worth less than the mortgage debt, the foreclosing creditor will often foreclose by action in
order to preserve a deficiency claim against the mortgagor, unless the mortgagor has no other assets
with which to satisfy a deficiency claim.
15. Does Minnesota’s anti-deficiency statute protect guarantors?
Under current published case law—no. Current published case law provides that a lender may
foreclose by advertisement and still pursue guarantors (who are not also the mortgagor) for recovery
of any deficiency claim.
16. What are reinstatement rights?
When an unmatured installment note goes into default, virtually all promissory notes or loan
agreements allow the lender to “accelerate” the note, at which point the installment feature of the note
goes away and the entire loan becomes immediately due and payable. Minnesota’s “reinstatement”
statute, which is designed to protect borrowers, permits borrowers to stop the foreclosure of the
mortgage by “curing” defaults any time before the Sheriff’s sale. The right of reinstatement is unique
to the foreclosure of real estate mortgages. Generally, borrowers do not have a right to “cure” loan
defaults after they have defaulted and the lender has accelerated the loans. Reinstatement does not
apply to loans which have matured.
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17. What is a foreclosure by advertisement and how long does it take?
Virtually all mortgages signed in Minnesota contain a “power-of-sale” clause, which entitles the
mortgagee, at its option, to foreclose the mortgage by advertisement. Although there are many
technical requirements and deadlines, a foreclosure by advertisement is generally conducted by
publishing a notice of the time, date and place of the foreclosure sale in a legal publication for six
consecutive weeks. The actual sale typically takes place about eight weeks after the Notice of
Pendency is recorded. The sale is followed by a redemption period, which is usually six months.
Accordingly, assuming there is no bankruptcy filing, a typical foreclosure by advertisement (including
the typical six month redemption period) generally takes around eight to nine months.
18. What is a foreclosure by action and how long does it take?
Instead of foreclosing by advertisement, a lender may foreclose by action. To foreclose by action, the
mortgagee must commence a lawsuit in the county where the mortgaged property is located and sue
everyone with a lien or interest in the property which is junior to the mortgage being foreclosed,
including: (i) owners of the property; (ii) junior lienholders; and (iii) in appropriate cases, tenants and
other occupants. Before a foreclosure sale can occur, the foreclosing party must obtain a decree of
foreclosure from the court. To obtain a decree of foreclosure, the foreclosing party must “win” the
lawsuit. Generally, a party can win a lawsuit in one of four ways: (i) by default judgment (when the
defendant fails to answer the complaint or defend the lawsuit); (ii) by summary judgment (if there are
no disputed issues of material fact and the lender is entitled to judgment as a matter of law); (iii) after
a trial; or (iv) pursuant to a written agreement. From a timing perspective: (i) default judgments are
entered relatively fast, usually within a month to six weeks after the service of the complaint; (ii)
summary judgment takes longer (difficult to predict, but typically within two to five months after the
service of the complaint); (iii) trials generally take a year or more to conclude; and (iv) judgments
pursuant to agreements are entered under any timeline to which the parties agree.
A foreclosure by action is not completed when the court enters a decree of foreclosure. The decree of
foreclosure only permits the lender to proceed with publication of the foreclosure sale, a publication
process that resembles the six weeks of successive publication used in foreclosures by
advertisement. Then, after the foreclosure sale is conducted, the party conducting the foreclosure
sale must go back to the court and ask the court to enter an order confirming the sale. In a
foreclosure by action, the redemption period does not start running until the date the court enters an
order confirming the sale. Once the sale is confirmed, the sheriff will issue the Sheriff’s Certificate.
For obvious reasons, a foreclosure by action can take considerably longer than a foreclosure by
advertisement. A “fast” foreclosure by action (where the matter proceeds by default) will usually add
only a month or two to the foreclosure process. A foreclosure by action which proceeds by summary
judgment can easily add two to five months to the process. Cases which proceed to trial can add
considerably more time to the process because it generally takes a year or so before a trial can
occur.

19. Why would a lender
foreclosure by advertisement is

foreclose by action if
generally faster?
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Most residential mortgages in Minnesota are foreclosed by advertisement. However, many mortgages
secured by commercial properties are foreclosed by action. There are several reasons why many
commercial mortgages are foreclosed by action. First, the lender may want to maintain a deficiency
against the mortgagor, which usually cannot be done in a foreclosure by advertisement. Second,
there may be title issues which need to be resolved by a court order. Third, loans secured by
commercial mortgages are often guarantied by one or more guarantors and are often secured by
other collateral, including non real-estate collateral. When foreclosing by advertisement, the lender
cannot commence another action (such as: (i) an action for claim and delivery to acquire possession
of personal property serving as collateral; or (ii) a collection suit against a guarantor to recover a
deficiency) until after the foreclosure sale is conducted. Uncertainty regarding collateral values and
uncertainty regarding the ability to collect from guarantors, together with a desire to bring all parties
and sources of recovery into play, often cause a lender to pursue foreclosure by action, unless the
lender is fully secured by the real estate or the mortgaged real estate is the only real source of
recovery.
20. When can a lender negotiate a voluntary foreclosure agreement with a shortened twomonth redemption period?
VFAs (or voluntary foreclosure agreements) are an option if: (i) the property is neither homestead nor
agricultural; (ii) at least one of the defaults has existed for at least one month; (iii) the mortgage was
executed on or after August 1, 1993; (iv) the mortgagee is willing to waive a deficiency claim against
the mortgagor; (v) the mortgagor is willing to give the lender possession of the property or consent to
the appointment of a receiver; and (vi) the mortgagor is agreeable to a two-month redemption period.
The obvious benefit of a VFA is the two-month redemption period. Also, the publication period is
reduced to four weeks from six weeks, for a typical time savings of nearly five months
.
21. When can a lender take advantage of the reduced five week redemption period for
abandoned residential properties?
The redemption period may be reduced to five weeks if: (i) the mortgage was executed after
December 31, 1989; (ii) at least one of the defaults has existed for at least 60 days; (iii) the property
is 10 acres or less in size; (iv) the property is improved with a residential dwelling consisting of less
than five units; (v) the dwelling is not a model home; (vi) the dwelling is not under construction; and
(vii) the property is not used in agricultural production. If the criteria above are met, the court may
enter an order reducing the redemption period to five weeks.
For more information on foreclosures and other creditors' remedies questions, contact our bankruptcy
attorneys:
Daniel C. Beck
(612) 604-6738

Jacob B. Sellers
(612) 604-6699

Christopher A. Camardello
(612) 604-6649

Kristopher "Tip" Lee
(612) 604-6557

Michael A. Rosow
(612) 604-6734
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